
 

 
Telephone Enquiries: , Democratic Services (01254) 380109 
Email:  michael.cunliffe@hyndburnbc.gov.uk 
Published on Tuesday, 11 October 2016 

Page 1 of 2  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Planning Committee 
 
Wednesday, 19 October 2016 at 2.00 pm, 
Scaitcliffe House, Ormerod Street, Accrington 
 
Membership 
 
Chair: Councillor Bernard Dawson 
Vice-Chair:  Councillor Loraine Cox 
 
Councillors Judith Addison, Mohammad Ayub, Stephen Button, Stewart Eaves, Melissa Fisher, 
June Harrison, Eamonn Higgins, Abdul Khan, Kath Pratt, Paddy Short and Paul Thompson 
 

 

A G E N D A 
 
 

1.   Apologies for Absence, Substitutions, Declarations of Interest and Dispensations   
 
 

2.   Minutes of the Last Meeting  (Pages 3 - 4) 
 
To submit the minutes of the Planning Committee meeting held on the 21st September 
2016 for approval as a correct record. 
 
Recommended - That the minutes be received and approved as a  

correct record. 
 

3.   Town and Country Planning Act 1990- Planning Applications for Determination  
(Pages 5 - 12) 
 
The attached report sets out recommended action on the following planning application:- 
 
3A - 11/16/0333: Change of use from A3 (Restaurant) to A3 and A5 (Hot Food Take-
Away) 

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2016-2017 

Public Document Pack



 

Page 2 of 2 

 

Units 23-25 Arndale Centre, Union Street, Accrington 
 
Recommended - That the applications be determined as set out in  

the report. 
 

 
 



 

 P L A N N I N G  C O M M I T T E E  

Wednesday, 21st September 2016 

Present: Councillor Bernard Dawson (in the Chair); Councillors Judith Addison,  
Mohammed Ayub, Stephen Button, Loraine Cox, Stuart Eaves, Melissa Fisher,  
June Harrison, Eamonn Higgins, Kath Pratt, Paddy Short and Paul Thompson. 

_________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 Apologies for Absence 
 

Apologies for absence were submitted by Councillor Abdul Khan. 
 
 
 Substitutions 
 

There was no substitute representative for Councillor Khan. 
 
 
 Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 
  

There were no declarations of interest. 
 

 
 Minutes of the Last Meeting 
 

The minutes of the last Planning Committee held on the 31st August 2016, were submitted for 
approval as a correct record. 

 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct record. 

  
 
 Town and Country Planning Act 1990 

Planning Applications for Determination 
  

The Chief Planning and Transportation Officer reported that the following planning application 
had been withdrawn from the Planning Committee agenda. 

 
11/16/0243 Major Full: Change of use from church to 11 No apartments, 1 No 9 Bed 

HMO with associated external changes 
Cannon Street Baptist Church, 14 Cannon Street, Accrington 

 
The Chief Planning and Transportation Officer submitted a report setting out recommended 
action on the following planning application. 

 
 Resolved   - That the following planning permission be refused subject to the 

conditions as per the report:- 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2.



 

11/16/0302 Change of use of ground floor a1 shops (off licence) to a5 hot food 
takeaway 
145 Manchester Road, Accrington 

 
N.B.  
(1) Ms Claire Ainsworth spoke at the committee in support of the above planning application  
and against the Officer’s recommendation to refuse planning permission. 
 
(2) There was an error on page two of the report which stated the A680 Burnley Road, this was  
incorrect and should have read the A680 Manchester Road.  
 
(3) There was an error on page seven of the report which stated in the recommendation 
policy E10 of the Hyndburn Core Strategy. This was incorrect and should have read  
policy E10 of the Hyndburn Local Plan.   
 

 
Land at Haslingden Old Road (Home Farm), Oswaldtwistle 

 
Exclusion of the Public 

 
Resolved  - (1) That, in accordance with Section 100A(4) Local Government 

Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting during the 
following item, when it was likely, in view of the nature of the 
business to be transacted, or the nature of the proceedings, that 
there would otherwise be disclosure of exempt information within 
the Paragraphs at Schedule 12A of the Act specified at the items. 

 
Exempt information under the Local Government Act 1972, Schedule 12A, Paragraph 3  -   
Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the 
authority holding that information) 

 
The Chief Planning and Transportation Officer submitted an exempt report in a supplementary 
agenda setting out recommended action on the following enforcement case. 

 
Land at Haslingden Old Road (Home Farm), Oswaldtwistle without planning permission and 
the erection of a timber framed structure with corrugated sheeting and construction of a 
blockwork building (purpose unknown). 

 
 Resolved  - (2) That Planning Committee approved legal proceedings in 

respect of a failure to comply with an enforcement notice to 
remedy the breach of planning control subject to the 
recommendation as per the report:- 

 
 
 

Signed: ………………………………………………. 
 

Date: ………………………………………………………. 
 

Chair of the meeting 
at which the minutes were confirmed. 

 

Page 4



 

 

  
REPORT TO:  PLANNING COMMITTEE, 19th OCTOBER 2016, 2.00PM 
 
REPORT BY:  CHIEF PLANNING & TRANSPORTATION OFFICER 
 
APPLICATIONS SUBMITTED UNDER THE TOWN AND  
 
COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990 FOR DETERMINATION  
 
Purpose of Report:  To present planning applications for determination as set out in 
the report 
 
3A 11/16/0333 Change of use from A3 (Restaurant) to A3 and A5 (Hot Food 

Take-Away  

 

Units 23-25 Arndale Centre, Union Street, Accrington 

 

 
NOTE:  The policies referred to under “Relevant Policies” are set out in the 
Hyndburn Borough Local Plan, Hyndburn Core Strategy and National Planning 
Policy Framework.   
 
A list of the above documents and background papers relating to each planning 
report can also be inspected at Scaitcliffe House, Accrington, upon request or via 
the HBC website:  
http://planning.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/WAM/searchsubmit/performOption.do?action=se
arch&appType=Planning 
 
 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3.

http://planning.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/WAM/searchsubmit/performOption.do?action=search&appType=Planning
http://planning.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/WAM/searchsubmit/performOption.do?action=search&appType=Planning


This page is intentionally left blank



Application Number: 11/16/0333 

 

Full Application:  Change of use from A3 (Restaurant) to A3 and A5 (Hot 

Food Take-Away). 

 

Address: Units 23-25 Arndale Centre, Union Street, Accrington.   

 

Determination by:   17 October 2016 

 

Applicant:   CPL Food Ltd 

 

Agent:    Mr A Britsch 

 

Application Site 

 

The application site comprises units 23-25 Cornhill Arcade, located within the primary retail 

area of Accrington Town Centre. The site area is approximately 1,000 square metres and 

the existing food court has the capacity for approximately 120 covers.  

 

Proposal 

 

Planning permission is sought for a change of use of the site from A3 (Restaurant) to A3 

(Restaurant) and A5 (Hot Food Take-Away). No external works are proposed as part of this 

application. A separate application has been received in relation to advertisement consent.  

 

This application is before the Planning Committee as it would represent a significant 

departure from the Council’s Development Plan.  

 

Consultations 

 

Site notice: 2 affixed. 

 

Neighbours: Letter sent to unit 21, no comments received 

 

LCC Highways:  

 

There is an existing use for the preparation and sale of food at the above location.  It is also 

a town centre location with a number of parking sites and good links to the public transport 

network within the vicinity.  The proposal raises no highway concerns and I would therefore 

raise no objection to the proposal on highway safety grounds. 

 

Environmental Health:  

 

Development/Construction phase 

 

Page 7



Deliveries to and from the site should be restricted to between 0800 and 1800hrs Monday to 

Friday and 1300hrs on Saturdays. Deliveries should not take place on Sundays and bank 

holidays. Works should be restricted to between 0800 and 1800hrs Monday to Friday and 

1300 on Saturdays. Works should not take place on Sundays and bank holidays. All works 

should be undertaken in accordance with BS5228:2009. 

 

Reason- to ensure that site working only takes place during normal working hours in order to 

restrict the times during which any disturbance and nuisance may arise. 

 

Development/construction phase 

 

Effect of Noise/dust /fumes on neighbouring premises during the building works. 

Measures should be in place to prevent nuisance being caused to residents /occupants from 

noise, dust and or fumes arising from the building works. 

 

There should not be any burning of construction waste on site, appropriate provisions 

should be made for its disposal. 

 

Reason- to protect the amenities of existing occupiers at nearby premises from nuisance 

sources associated with the building site. 

 

Odour and noise 

 

A scheme for the control of cooking odours and fan noise from the premises shall be 

submitted in writing to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

Before the use hereby approved is commenced, the agreed scheme shall be implemented 

and thereafter retained. 

 

Reason: to prevent dis- amenity to occupiers of neighbouring premises from cooking odours 

and/or extraction system noise. 

 

Relevant Planning History 

 

13/0433: Discharge of conditions no 3 and 4 of 11/13/0292. A/c  27.11.13 

13/0415: Advert: display of 3 no fascia signs and 1 no hanging sign. A/c 19.12.2013 

13/0292: Change of use from A1 to A3 and elevational changes. A/c 11.10.2013 

 

Relevant Policies 

 

Development Plan 

 

Hyndburn Borough Local Plan Saved Policies 

 Policy E.10  Development Criteria 

 Policy R.6                   Hot food Take-away 

 

 

Page 8



Hyndburn Core Strategy 

 Policy Env4  Sustainable Development and Climate Change 

 Policy Env6  High Quality Design 

 Policy Env7  Environmental Amenity 

 

Accrington Area Action Plan 

 A2    Accrington Town Centre 

 ATC2    Shopping frontages and the use of floors above shops 

 

National Planning Policy Framework 

 Paragraph 17           Core planning principles 

 Section 7   Requiring good design 

 

Other material considerations 

 Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) 

 

Observations 

 

The key issues for consideration in this application are the principle of the change of use, its 

impact on amenity and highways matters.   

 

Principle of development 

 

Policy ATC 2 of the adopted Accrington Area Action Plan states, 

 

 ‘In order to protect and strengthen the retail offer in the town centre the Council will control 

the use of ground floor premises in shopping streets through the exercise of its planning 

powers to safeguard and enhance the vitality and viability of the town centre’. It goes on to 

state, ‘A5 (Hot food take-aways) uses will not be permitted in the primary shopping area’. 

 

Policy A2 of the adopted Core Strategy states: ‘new comparison and convenience (including 

food) retailing will be focussed in Accrington Town Centre’ 

 

Whilst the policy does not state where food offer should specifically go, this statement would 

support the proposed application. NPPF para 23 also states ‘where town centres are in 

decline, local planning authorities should plan positively for their future to encourage 

economic activity’  

 

Accrington Town Centre does have an up to date ‘town centre health check’ contained 

within the Hyndburn Retail Study (June 2016). The study identified that the town centre is 

struggling on a number of indicators of vitality and viability, vacancy rate is significantly 

higher than the UK national average and the proportion of comparison retail outlets is also 

well below the national average. Additionally, the study also notes that the important food 

and drink sector is significantly under-represented. 

 

Page 9



This site whilst not vacant has seen 3 of the 4 food offering stalls within the food court (A3) 

close since its approval in 2013.  

 

The primary retail frontage of the site would remain A3 (Restaurant) with the addition of an 

A5 (Hot Food-take-away) which would allow for deliveries within the local area. The new unit 

forms part of the existing food court, customer access is available to the existing dining area 

for those wanting to eat in.   

 

It is clear that retail activity in general has been suffering within the town centre and 

especially within the Arndale and there is the potential for this application to give rise to 

creating an undesirable precedent for similar A5 uses within the primary retail area.   

 

However there is supporting policies within the AAP and the NPPF which seek to establish a 

vibrant and successful town centre.  It would be anticipated that a mixed A3/A5 use in this 

location would create further footfall within the town centre and to take up vacant space in 

the food court.  The development of the bus station in proximity to the Arndale would also 

lend support for the addition of an additional food offering in this location.   

 

For these reasons it is therefore recommended that this application should be supported.   

 

Impact on amenity 

 

Policy Env7 of the Hyndburn Core Strategy states that proposals for new development will 

only be permitted if it does not result in unacceptable adverse impacts through (amongst 

other things), noise, odour, traffic or other nuisances. Additionally, Saved policy R6 of the 

Local Plan requires applications for hot food takeaways to be determined taking into 

consideration effects on amenity of local residents and on the character of the area through 

noise, disturbance, traffic and parking, smell and litter 

 

The Environmental Health Officer raises no objection to the application subject to conditions 

on times of construction/demolition and the submission of a scheme for the control of odour 

and noise being submitted to and agreed in writing by local planning authority prior to the 

commencement of the development.  

 

However, Planning Officers have noted that no external physical works are proposed as part 

of the application and the existing use of the unit is for convenience food. As such, no 

conditions are recommended in relation to physical works or a scheme for the control of 

odour and extraction noise.  

 

Policy Env 7 of the Hyndburn Core Strategy states development which cannot demonstrate 

it will not give rise to unacceptable adverse impacts of loss of local amenity should not be 

approved.  In this instance, the application is considered to comply with Policies E10 and 

R.6 of the Hyndburn Borough Local Plan, Policy Env 7 of the Hyndburn Core Strategy and 

the NPPF.  

 

 

Page 10



Highways 

 

Lancashire County Council Highways has been consulted and offer no objection to the 

application. The engineer noted the following:  

 

‘There is an existing use for the preparation and sale of food at the above location.  It is also 

a town centre location with a number of parking sites and good links to the public transport 

network within the vicinity.  The proposal raises no highway concerns and I would therefore 

raise no objection to the proposal on highway safety grounds.’ 

 

Given the above, the application is considered to be acceptable in terms of its impact on the 

adopted highways.  

 

Recommendation   

 

That planning permission be granted subject to the following conditions: 

 

1. The development hereby approved shall be commenced before the expiration of 

three years from the date of this permission. 

 

Reason: To ensure that the Local Planning Authority retains the right to review 

unimplemented permissions and to comply with Section 91 (as amended) of the 

Town & Country Planning Act 1990. 

 

2. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the following documents: 

 

(a) The planning application forms and additional information received by 

Hyndburn Borough Council on 22nd August 2016 

(b) Submitted drawing No’s A3/01, A3/02, A3/100P,  received by Hyndburn 

Borough Council on 22nd August 2016 

 

Reason: for the avoidance of doubt and to enable Hyndburn Borough Council to 

adequately control the development and to minimise its impact on the amenities of 

the local area and to conform with Policies Env6 & Env7 of the Hyndburn Core 

Strategy. 

 

Informatives 

 

1. 13a 

2. 14 

3. 15 

4. 16 

5. 17 

6. Env Health 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2. Minutes of the Last Meeting
	3. Town and Country Planning Act 1990- Planning Applications for Determination
	3.A.  11 16 0333


